ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE TRANSPORTATI ON COWM TTEE
April 9, 2002
1:34 p.m

MEMBERS PRESENT

Senat or John Cowdery, Chair
Senator Jerry Ward, Vice Chair
Senat or Robi n Tayl or

Senator Gary W/ ken

Senator Kim El ton

MEVMBERS ABSENT
Al Menbers Present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 358
"An Act naming state ferries.”
MOVED SB 358 QUT OF COW TTEE

SPONSOR SUBSTI TUTE FOR SENATE BI LL NO. 100
"An Act relating to regulation and operation of electric personal
notor vehicles and to vehicle registration.™

MOVED CSSSSB 100 (TRA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 405

"An Act relating to the prosecution of crimnal offenses

commtted on or against ferries and other watercraft owned or

operated by the state; and providing for an effective date."
MOVED HB 405 OUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI QUS COMM TTEE ACTI ON

SB 358 - No previous action to record.

SB 100 — See Transportation m nutes dated 3/13/01.
HB 405 — No previous action to record.

W TNESS REG STER

Kel |y Huber

Staff to Senate President Rick Halford

State Capitol, Rm 111
Juneau, AK 99801-1182

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -1- April 9, 2002



POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified for the sponsor of SB 358 and SSSB
100

M. Dennis Harris

PO Box 21214

Juneau, AK 99802

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed to SB 100

M. Dennis Poshard
Departnent of Transportation &
Public Facilities
3132 Channel Dr.
Juneau, AK 99801-7898
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Stated no position on SB 100 but answered
guesti ons.

Ms. Mary Marshburn

D vision of Mtor Vehicles

Department of Adm nistration

PO Box 110200

Juneau, AK 99811-0200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Di scussed technical problens with SB 100

Representati ve Kevin Meyer

Al aska State Capitol

Juneau, AK 99801-1182

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of HB 405

Ms. Anne Car peneti

Departnent of Law

PO Box 110300

Juneau, AK 99811-0300

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Supports HB 405

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
TAPE 02-14, SIDE A

CHAI RVAN JOHN CONDERY cal l ed the Senate Transportation Conmttee
neeting to order at 1:34 p.m Present were Senator Ward, Senator
Elton, Senator WIken and Chairnman Cowdery. Senator Tayl or
arrived at 1:39 p.m The first order of business was SB 358,
foll owed by SB 100 and HB 405.

#SB 358
SB 358- NAM NG STATE FERRI ES

CHAl RVAN COWDERY said he did not know if nenbers had an
opportunity to read the packet and noted that school children did
a good job witing essays for the contest. One wi nner of the

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 2- April 9, 2002



contest selected the nane “Fairweather.” Wsley Tyrrell’s essay
contained a pretty good anal ogy. “Chenega” was the other w nning
nane. That ferry will be naned after the Chenega G acier. SB
358 is a piece of legislation to make those choices | egal.

M5. KELLY HUBER, staff to Senate President Rick Halford,
explained the bill was introduced through the Senate Rules
Commttee as a formality. Senate President Halford and House
Speaker Porter, as well as Lieutenant Governor U ner, judged the
contest. To nmake the process |egal and nanme the next two ferries
on the production line *“Fairweather” and “Chenega,” a bill nust
go through the | egislative process and be signed by the Governor.

M5. HUBER informed the conmttee that many very good essays were
subm tted. The essays were interesting and children from all
over the state participated.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said he had a chance to read the essays and was
very inpressed. He asked if there was anyone else to testify.
[ No response. ]

SENATOR WARD noved SB 358 from comittee wth individua
recommendations. There being no objection, the notion carried.
#

#SB100
SB 100- PERSONAL MOTOR VEHI CLES/ REGQ STRATI ON

M5. KELLY HUBER, staff to Senator Halford, sponsor of SB 100
informed nenbers that a proposed commttee substitute was in
menbers’ packets. She noted the sponsor has requested that
menbers adopt the proposed committee substitute and that she

woul d address that version (Version L). She described the bill as
fol |l ows.
This bill was introduced because of new technol ogy. A new devi ce,

called the electric personal notor vehicle assistive device, was
unveiled in the fall of 2001. It is a clean fuel, quiet, upright,
t wo- wheel tandem device that can travel at 15 nph, that was
designed for use in pedestrian areas. Senator Halford introduced
this legislation to nake sure that use of those vehicles is not
prohibited in certain areas and so that registration |icensure is
not required. The proposed commttee substitute addresses changes
in statute concerning farm and construction vehicles. That
provi sion was renoved from Version L. Another provision that was
removed from Version L prohibited departnents from witing
regul ations concerning the assistive nobility device. The
departnments will be able to wite regulations but they cannot

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 3- April 9, 2002



prohibit wuse of the device. She said she believes the
Adm ni stration supports the |egislation.

CHAl RVAN COWDERY asked if the legislation also applies to
el ectric wheel chairs.

M5. HUBER said she does not believe there are any problens
associated with electric wheelchairs right now The sponsor
statenent refers to wheelchairs as an exanple of an assistive
nobility device that is useful to senior citizens. She said the
sponsor wants the electric personal notor vehicle to be treated
simlar to an electric wheelchair rather than any other type of
transportation.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked if the electric personal notor vehicle is
a two-wheel ed vehicle.

M5. HUBER said it is and that the rider stands on it.
CHAI RVAN CONDERY noted the presence of Senator Tayl or.

There being no further questions, SENATOR WARD noved to adopt
Version L of SSSB 100 as the working docunent of the commttee.

CHAl RMVAN COWDERY announced that w thout objection, Version L was
adopt ed.

SENATOR ELTON asked Ms. Huber if enactnent of this bill would
preclude any nunicipality from regulating the use of these
devices on city sidewal ks.

M5. HUBER said the bill does not contain a nunicipal exenption
area, based on the idea that this technology is new and there
will not be many of these devices on the streets for a while.

Should an issue arise later on, the matter can be addressed at
that ti me.

SENATOR ELTON said he hates to sound like the only conservative
in the room but it seens to himthat the |legislature would not

want governnment to mandate rules until a problem arises. He
stated, “That alnost seens backward to nme — that you' re saying
well, there may or may not be a problem but we’'re going to allow

it anyway.” He said his concern is that negotiating the sidewal ks
in downtown Juneau during the cruise ship season is difficult.
Juneau has banned the use of skateboards on sidewal ks. The
el ectric personal notor vehicles travel five tinmes faster than a
normal person wal ks and probably 10 tinmes faster than a tourist
anbl es through the community. He repeated that he is having a

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -4- April 9, 2002



difficult time with the concept that state governnent is going to
tell communities how to regulate traffic in highly congested
ar eas.

M5. HUBER responded that it is not that the sponsor disagrees,
but he does not foresee any problens at this tine. She pointed
out that electric wheelchairs travel on sidewal ks.

SENATOR ELTON said if, in fact, there is a problem
municipalities will have to cone to the legislature to request
that the statute be anended so that they can deal wth the
probl em

CHAl RMVAN COWDERY asked if the state has jurisdiction over
muni ci pal ri ghts-of -way.

SENATOR TAYLOR said it does. He asked if electric personal notor
vehi cl es could travel on bi ke paths and whet her the sponsor woul d
object to a friendly anendnent allow ng snow nachines to use the
bi ke pat hs al so.

M5. HUBER said they would be allowed to travel on bi ke paths.
CHAI RVAN COADERY t ook public testinony.

MR DENNIS HARRIS informed nenbers that he is very active in
Juneau’s cycling comunity. He is very concerned about this
| egi sl ation for several reasons, one being that there are already
many conflicts on nultiple-use paths. Those paths are already
congested, particularly sidewal ks in downtown Juneau. He pointed
out there is a good reason why state law and nost city codes
don’t allow the use of bicycles on sidewal ks by anyone over 12
years old — because bicycles nove at a much greater speed than
pedestrians; the sanme reason skateboards are prohibited in a good
part of the downtown area of Juneau. Many elderly people with
osteoporosis fear bicycles and skateboards on sidewal ks because
if they fall, their injuries are slow to heal. He said his
bi ggest concern about this bill is that the first orders will be
delivered to businesses such as UPS and FedEx for commercial use
in the next six nonths. The manufacturer does not expect themto
be in general use for at least two years and the nmanufacturer is
engaged in a giant |obbying effort across the country to exenpt
t hese vehicles fromregul ation. He stated:

That’s what this bill does and it's wong. Qite
frankly, we should allow sonme experience with these
vehi cl es before we deci de what kind of regulation to do
but in nmy opinion they should not be - this bill

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 5- April 9, 2002



essentially prohibits cities fromprohibiting their use
on a sidewalk. | can just see the situation between
here and the Governor’s Mansion on Cal houn Avenue — on
that very narrow sidewal k — where soneone is trying to
zip along and get to work on their segue at 15 mles an
hour and it’s crowded with pedestrians in the norning
trying to walk to work and there’'s heavy traffic in the
street. This is just not a good idea. | think we need
to wait and see what kind of experience we can have
wi th these vehicles.

MR. HARRI S said his other concern is that people are not aware of
the nmass of these vehicles. They weigh 80 pounds and can trave
at 20 nph. The delivery devices will be set at 12.5 nph. He
expressed concern that the pronotion of these devices has been
di si ngenuous because they are referred to as personal assistive

nobility devices, which sounds |ike sonething for use by the
handi capped. However, they wll not work for many handi capped
peopl e because passengers nust stand to ride them He also
expressed concern that this bill wll take away |ocal contro

over these devices. He indicated that npbst bicycle paths and
pedestri an wal kways al ongsi de federal aid highways in Al aska were
financed by a federal |aw. Under that federal law, this bill
woul d not be |egal because the federal |aw prohibits the use of
any kind of notorized device on a sidewal k or pedestrian way that
was built with federal aid dollars. He offered to submt the
correct citation to nmenbers.

CHAI RVAN COADERY asked M. Harris to describe a multiple use
pat h.

MR HARRIS said that nultiple use paths were designed for non-
notorized use, which is what is stated in federal |aw. He added
that in doing research for a proposed Juneau ordinance to all ow
the use of notorized skooters, he found they were prohibited by
the same federal law. He urged nenbers to nove slowy on this
l egislation as it needs further research, particularly in the
pedestrian conflict area.

SENATOR TAYLOR pointed out that, according to the sponsor
statenent, “the National H ghway Traffic Safety Admnistration
ruled this device is not a notor vehicle and should not be under
their jurisdiction.” He also pointed out that 12 states have
enacted simlar |egislation.

MR HARRIS said as far as he is aware, the only activity at the

federal |evel regarding use of these devices is a bill sponsored
by Senator Bob Smith of New Hanpshire. He said use of these
devices is still prohibited by the U S. Code unless it has been

changed in the last six nonths and that maybe those states are

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 6- April 9, 2002



ignoring the federal law. He repeated the manufacturer has nade
an aggressive | obbying effort in every state. He said he believes
they could be a great idea for comercial use for package
delivery as long as the vehicles are not running on sidewal ks.

MR. DENNIS POSHARD, Special Assistant at the Departnent of
Transportation and Public Facilities (DOTPF), told nenbers that
DOTPF has taken no position on this bill. He clarified that the
Nat i onal Hi ghway Traffic Safety Adm nistration has nade a ruling
that <classifies this particular device as a non-notorized
vehicle. He pointed out that Section 1 of this bill applies to
the state and says that regul ations adopted may not prohibit the
use of an electric personal notor vehicle; however, DOTPF could
adopt regulations that |imt their use. He assuned the sane
provi sions under the Alaska Uniform Traffic Act would apply to
| ocal governnents so they could regulate the use of electric
personal vehicles but not prohibit their use.

SENATOR ELTON asked if he is correct in assunmng that the city of
Juneau could not prohibit the use of electric personal vehicles
on sidewal ks in the core downtown area during the tourist season

MR. POSHARD said he is not qualified to nmake a |egal analysis,
but his initial reaction is that a |ocal governnent nay be able
to further restrict them He is aware of certain traffic |aws
that | ocal governnents have adopted, particularly in Anchorage,
that are nore restrictive than those contained in the state’s
Uniform Traffic Act. He did not know whether any |ocal |aws have
been challenged. He said the Departnent of Law recently pointed
out that Sec. 28.01.010 of the Alaska Uniform Traffic Act reads,
“The provisions of this title and the regul ati ons adopted under

this title are applicable wthin all mnunicipalities of this
state.” He indicated that could be legally interpreted either
way.

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked M. Poshard if he was referring to the
restriction on truck routes in Anchorage and whether that
restriction was mnade because certain roads were not built to
wi t hstand heavy truck traffic.

MR. POSHARD said he believes that is true but noted that other
provi si ons adopted by the |ocal governnment in Anchorage are nore
restrictive than the Uniform Traffic Act.

SENATOR TAYLOR sai d one coul d shoot a cannon down the main street
of Wangell in the summer and not hurt anyone. He suggested if
pedestrian traffic is a problemin Juneau in the sunmertinme, that
sone of the pedestrians be sent to other comunities.

CHAI RVAN COADERY continued to take public testinony.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -7- April 9, 2002



M5. MARY MARSHBURN, Director of the Division of Mtor Vehicles
(DW) in the Departnment of Admnistration, said she assunes
menbers are aware of a glitch in current law that requires a
driver’s license to operate a snow nmachine and HB 397, which
seeks to fix that glitch for snow machines and other vehicles
that are not designed for road use. She noted that under current
|l aw, electronic personal vehicles would be defined as notor
vehi cl es and because they do not neet federal safety standards,
they could not be used on the roadway. Passage of HB 397 woul d
resol ve that problem

CHAl RMAN CONDERY asked if any licensing requirenents apply to
bi cycl es.

MS5. MARSHBURN sai d none do.

SENATOR WARD asked Ms. Marshburn if it is her opinion that
drivers’ licenses would be required to drive an electric personal
not or vehi cl e.

M5. MARSHBURN replied, “M. Chairman, very, very technically
because of a glitch in the law, yes.”

SENATOR WARD said her interpretation is different than his. He
asked her to forward her opinion to the conmittee in witing so
that he could take a closer | ook at the issue.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked Ms. Marshburn if she would consider an
el ectric personal notor vehicle to be a notor vehicle.

M5. MARSHBURN said they are notor vehicles by state definition
because they are sel f-propell ed devices. Because they do not neet
the federal safety equi pnment standards required under 13AAC 04,
t hey cannot be operated on a roadway.

SENATOR WARD asked Ms. Marshburn if she has read the | atest
commttee substitute (Version L) and whether it is her inpression
that this version will allow electric personal notor vehicles to
be operated on roadways.

M5. MARSHBURN sai d she has the original bill

SENATOR WARD said a previous wtness nentioned skateboards wth
notors and asked if DW requires skateboards to be |icensed.

MS. MARSHBURN sai d DW does not.
SENATOR WARD asked why not .

M5. MARSHBURN said a notorized skateboard does not neet the
definition of a notor vehicle.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 8- April 9, 2002



SENATOR WARD asked if an electric personal notor vehicle does
even though the federal governnent has rul ed ot herw se.

M5. MARSHBURN said that is correct. It is her understanding that
the National H ghway Traffic Safety Adm nistration nmakes rulings
based on the role that agency will play in devel opi ng standards
for vehicles. The rulings have nothing to do with the operation
of the vehicles.

SENATOR WARD asked why a skateboard with a snmall gas engine and a
steering device would not be considered to be a licensable
vehicle while an electric personal notor vehicle would be.

M5. MARSHBURN said she did not know that she could give Senator
Ward an answer to the technicalities. She stated, “And | would
enphasize - you know, enphasi ze, t hat in the strict
interpretation of the definition of notor vehicle is what we’'re
tal king about for the segue or the IT just as it was a very
strict interpretation of the driver license law, which said it’s
required for a snow nachine. That certainly was not the intent of
the law.” She pointed out this refers to a vehicle license as
opposed to a driver license.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY said he believes Senator Ward is concerned
because M. Poshard just said that an electronic personal notor
vehicle is not considered to be a notor vehicle under the federal
gui delines. He asked Ms. Marshburn if she has actually seen an
el ectroni c personal notor vehicle.

M5. MARSHBURN sai d she has seen pictures of them

SENATOR WARD asked Ms. Marshburn to send a witten explanation to
menbers of how she arrived at her opinion that a driver’s |license
woul d be required to operate an el ectric personal notor vehicle.

M5. MARSHBURN agreed to do so.

There being no further testinmony, SENATOR WARD noved CSSSSB
100(TRA) fromcommttee with individual recommendations.

SENATOR ELTON objected for the purpose of addressing a proposed
anendnent. He proposed that on page 1, line 12, followng
“personal notor vehicle on a,” the words “state owned and
mai nt ai ned” be inserted. He explained with that anendnent the
state could nandate that electric personal notorized devices
could be used on state sidewal ks, vehicular ways and bi ke paths,
but it would preserve the point of view that the best governnent
is the governnent <closest to the people and allow |oca
governnents to i nplenent their own rules.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE - 9- April 9, 2002



SENATOR WARD obj ect ed.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he was taken with M. Harris' s testinony, as
he believes these vehicles will be difficult to navigate. He said
he does not know that Senator Elton’s amendnent acconplishes his
goal because he does not know that the state does mnuch
mai nt enance on any of those paths.

MS5. HUBER said she understands Senator Elton’s intent, but she
believes his anendnent would be difficult to enforce because
state roads are within cities and could cause confusion. She
asked the Chairman if he would be willing to hold the bill until
Thursday so that she could work with nmenbers on a |ocal option

She said she would also ook at what other states that have
passed sim |l ar |egislation have done.

SENATOR ELTON sai d that woul d be great.

CHAl RMVAN COWDERY said the conmttee has a full calendar on
Thursday so he will reschedule it on Thursday or Tuesday.

SENATOR WARD renm nded the Chairman that his nmpotion to npbve the
bill from commttee was still active. He said he does not want
t he Anchorage coastal trail exenpted fromthis bill

SENATOR ELTON stated, “M. Chair, what | would suggest is that |
don’t have a problem with that — I think it’s very generous of
the sponsor’s office to nake the offer and if, in fact, we can't
conme to sone kind of an agreement, | mght vote against noving it
but I certainly wouldn’t try to get in the way of noving it. |
would think that noving the bill, either anended or in its
present form will take a matter of less than a mnute.” He noted
he mai ntai ned his objection.

SENATOR WARD repeated his nmotion to nove CSSSSB 100(TRA) from
commttee with individual reconmendations.

SENATOR ELTON objected and said this bill inposes big governnent
rules that the nunicipalities will have to live under. He said
el ectric personal notor vehicles would create a big problem in
his conmmunity.

SENATOR WARD stated this legislation says that electronic

personal notor vehicles cannot be prohibited; it does not say
t hey cannot be regul at ed.

CHAl RMAN COANDERY announced the notion carried with Senators \Ward,
Tayl or and Cowdery in favor and Senator Elton opposed.

SENATOR TAYLOR noted for the record that he would work wth
Senator Elton and the sponsor’s staff to try to create a |ocal

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -10- April 9, 2002



opti on.

SENATOR WARD said he would do |ikew se.
#

The comm ttee took up HB 405.

#HB 405
HB 405- CRI MES ON OR AGAI NST STATE VESSELS/ PLANES

REPRESENTATI VE KEVI N MEYER, sponsor of HB 405, gave the follow ng
sumary of the |egislation.

HB 405 gives the state jurisdiction over our state
owned watercraft including our watercraft that s
outside of state waters.

Recently a  Superior Court judge dism ssed the
prosecution for a sexual assault that occurred on one
of our Alaska state-owned ferries while it was in
Canadi an wat ers.

Last year a young woman who was only 16 years old was
sexual ly assaulted while she was on the Al aska ferry,
Mat anuska, en route from Seattle to Ketchikan. The
ferry was in Canadian waters at the tinme of the
assault. The district attorney in Ketchikan presented
the case to the grand jury there, and the grand jury
returned an indictnent of one count of sexual assault
in the first degree, one count of sexual assault in the
second degree, and four counts of m sdenmeanor assault.

Unfortunately, M. Chairman, the court found that there
was no statutory authority for the State of Alaska to
prosecute the crime even though the victim was an
Al askan on an Al aska-owned state ferry. Under federa
maritime | aw, the United States Governnent has
jurisdiction over crines commtted on United States
vessels in Canadian waters but the dism ssal by the
state court is a concern because the client is unlikely
to be prosecuted by the federal governnent and
certainly is of very little interest to the Canadi an
government. The federal governnment does not generally
prosecute offenses such as sexual assault and the
Canadi an governnment has little interest in pursuing
this since it was a state-owned ferry and it was an
Al aska victimthat it occurred to on the Al aska ferry.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -11- April 9, 2002



| believe, M. Chairman, that it’s prudent that we pass
a law that specifically will give the State of Al aska
the power to prosecute cases like this one and to
protect and defend our passengers on our state-owned
ferry system Unfortunately this is not an isolated
incident and it is not going to go away. Just as
recently as Decenber, four nonths ago, an intoxicated
passenger attacked two crewrenbers on one of our
ferries wth a vodka bottle and caused sonme m nor
injuries. The passenger - and charges were filed
agai nst this passenger — but the passenger has filed a
notion to dismiss the case based upon the sexual
assault that was dismssed last sumrer. Again, this
occurred in Canadian waters en route between Prince
Rupert and Ket chi kan.

This bill is a very sinple bill. It’s a sinple solution
to a very serious problem Wat we have here is a
| oophole in our law. The bottom line is that if the
Canadi ans won’t and don’t want to prosecute crimna
activity that occurs on state-owned vessels in Canadi an
waters and the federal governnent doesn’t have the tine
or doesn’'t want to prosecute, then the State of Al aska
should at |east have the option to do so if we so
desire. That, M. Chairman, is the just of the bill

SENATOR WARD asked the name of the judge in Ketchi kan who nade
the ruling.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER told nenbers that this case was brought to
his attention by the Departnent of Law. He deferred to M.
Carpeneti for details of the case.

MS. ANNE CARPENETI, Assistant Attorney General, infornmed nmenbers
that Judge Weeks made the decision but said there is reason for
his decision. She noted that although the Departnent of Law is
appealing the decision, the nobst prudent approach is to pass a
statute, which Judge Weks suggested in his decision.

SENATOR WARD asked if both the victim and the alleged offender
are Anerican and Al aska citizens.

MS. CARPENETI said the victimis an Anerican who lives in the
Anchorage area. Ms. Carpeneti said she believes she is an Al aska
resident. The defendant is an Anerican citizen and she was not
sure what state he is a resident of.

SENATOR WARD asked what charge the defendant was extradited on.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -12- April 9, 2002



M5. CARPENETI said she did not know as he was extradited on
charges brought in another state. She offered to get Senator Ward
nore information on the extradition charge. She added that the
def endant was extradited in Al aska on this charge.

SENATOR WARD stated, “He was indicted on this charge, but yet the
judge ruled that he couldn’t be indicted on this charge because
there was no law for it?”

M5. CARPENETI explained the ruling stated that crinmes and
jurisdiction over crimes in Alaska are dictated by statute;
Al aska does not have common law crinmes anynore. Alaska’s
jurisdictional statute allows the state to prosecute crines
committed in its territory or commtted outside of the territory
when the effect is consummated in our state. This particul ar
of fense was commtted outside of Alaska' s territory and the harm
occurred outside of its territory. For that reason, the judge
ruled that the state does not have jurisdiction.

SENATOR WARD asked if a sexual assault occurred in a state-owned
mlitary airplane while flying over Canada’s airspace and the
victim and offender were American citizens, whether Al aska woul d
have juri sdiction.

MS. CARPENETI said this bill does not address that issue and that
state airplanes generally operate in state airspace.

SENATOR WARD said he was referring to a state-owned mlitary
airplane that legally travels outside of state airspace.

M5. CARPENETI said it would depend on the circunmstances. She
remarked, “1’m sure they would be breaking sonebody’ s |aw. They
woul d probably be breaking federal |aw and they woul d probably be
breaking the law if it’s a sexual assault of the territory in
which it happened — in the airspace where it happened.”

SENATOR WARD asked, “And it’s this judge’'s opinion that the |aw
wasn’t broken because there was no law on it?”

M5. CARPENETI replied that Judge Weeks di d not express an opinion
on the particular offense. H's decision was not based on his
opinion that a |law hadn’t been broken but instead that the state
needs a statute on which to base the state’s authority to
prosecute the <case because it occurred outside of Al aska
territory.

SENATOR WARD asked, “So if, in fact, this hypothetical airplane |
just described was flying outside of Alaska airspace into
Canadi an airspace and this sexual assault had occurred, would
there not be any law to bring charges in that situation?”

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -13- April 9, 2002



M5. CARPENETI asked Senator Ward if he was referring to State of
Al aska | aw or Canadi an | aw.

SENATOR WARD sai d Al aska | aw.

MS. CARPENETI said that first of all, federal |aw would probably
apply.

SENATOR WARD asked if federal |aw would apply to the case on the
ferry.

M5. CARPENETI said yes, the federal governnent has jurisdiction
on United States flag vessels but, generally, the federal
gover nnment does not pursue cases like this on ferries. It tends
to pursue cases on airplanes.

REPRESENTATI VE MEYER commented that it seens when sonething
happens on an airplane, the federal governnent is right there to
prosecute. However, since the ferry system is state-owned, the
federal governnent does not seem to have the sane |evel of
i nterest.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY asked about cruise ships or privately owned
ferry systens.

M5. CARPENETI said the jurisdictional theory that this bill is
based on is that a state-owned vessel, *“has enough connections —
is kind of like a piece of Al aska traveling through international
waters.” She assuned a vessel owned by another private entity
traveling in Canadian waters would turn into the next port in
Canada and report the crime there. It is much nore difficult for
an Al aska ferry to go off course and off schedule and travel to a
port that may not be able to accomnmpdate the vessel.

SENATOR TAYLOR said a different Ketchikan Superior Court judge
found jurisdiction in a previous case and convicted sonmeone
traveling on the Alaska ferry in Canadi an waters.

M5. CARPENETI said she believes Senator Taylor is correct.
SENATOR TAYLOR said that is why this decision was considered to
be unique or aberrant to the extent that probably no one has
aggressively raised the defense before.

TAPE 02- 14, SIDE B

SENATOR TAYLOR asked why the legislation is limted to ferries.
He questioned whether federal jurisdiction extends to foreign
flag vessels bringing tourists to Juneau from Vancouver, B.C

M5. CARPENETI said she believes the state could prosecute a crine

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -14- April 9, 2002



agai nst a state |law on such a vessel if the crinme occurred while
the vessel was in Alaska territory. The Canadi an gover nnent woul d
have jurisdiction if the vessel was in Canadi an waters. She added
the flag of the ship would have jurisdiction no matter where the
ship is. The United States government has prosecuted crines that
occurred on U S. flagships traveling on rivers in Africa. She
assunmed the Washington authorities could prosecute a crinme that
happened between Bel | i ngham and Canada.

SENATOR TAYLOR said he gets confused about the jurisdictional
guestions because it is alnost frightening to think about an
incident occurring to a tourist on a boat registered in the
Seychelles. He noted that Di xon Entrance is a large gray zone as
far as whether Canada or the United States has jurisdiction. He
st at ed:

You could very easily be dealing with tw different
foreign nationals involved. You m ght have a crewrenber
that’s perpetrated a crine and the crew nenber is from
Italy nmaybe, and the victimis from Mexico. | think
that all becones very confusing. | think at |east as
far as our state-owned vessels we ought to have sone
continuity and |I'm assumng that your departnent
supports this | egislation.

M5. CARPENETI said the departnent does support the |egislation.

SENATOR TAYLOR asked if there is any reason to not consider
aircraft in the legislation. He said the Departnments of Public
Safety and Fish and Game have an aircraft fleet of sonewhere
between 46 and 52 and that any aircraft flying three mles
offshore is in international airspace.

M5. CARPENETI replied that nost state aircraft operate in the
state but she can understand the desire to include state-owned
aircraft traveling outside the state. The problem in terns of
vessels, for the Departnment of Law has not necessarily been with
crimes that have occurred in international waters because Al aska
has a statute that says where the federal governnent can exercise
jurisdiction, the state can also. That has allowed the state to
prosecute under Alaska's theft statutes. The issues generally
deal with due process — whether it is fair for the state to
exercise jurisdiction under the circunmstances with the connection
between Al aska and the offense. She added that a state-owned
aircraft would probably be simlar to a state-owned ferry.

SENATOR WARD asked, regarding the previous conviction that

Senator Taylor referred to, if that person would be able to file
for an appeal to get out of prison if this bill passes.

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -15- April 9, 2002



MS. CARPENETI said she does not believe so because this bill wll
give the state jurisdiction to prosecute.

SENATOR WARD asked if passage of this bill could set up an
argunment that the person convicted of rape was not convicted
| egal |y because the state did not have jurisdiction.

M5. CARPENETI said she does not believe so because she believes
this legislation nmakes explicit a position taken in the |ower
court.

SENATOR TAYLOR noted the case is on appeal and a decision wll be
made eventually by Al aska s Suprene Court as to whether or not
Judge Weeks was correct in denying jurisdiction to our state in
those waters. |If the Suprene Court decides the state had
jurisdiction all along and Judge Weks was wong, then the man
convicted in Ketchikan was justly convicted and there would be no
problem However, if the Suprene Court says Judge Weks was
correct, the state did not have jurisdiction, the convicted man
woul d have some right to appeal that conviction. Enacting this
law, confirmng or reasserting the state’'s jurisdiction, wll
only be effective fromthat date forward anyway but it would not
play upon the earlier case because it is not a negative — it
doesn’t say the state did not have jurisdiction, it further
asserts the state did have jurisdiction. He commented that he
does not want to see the case on appeal dropped if this law is
enact ed.

M5. CARPENETI stated the Departnment of Law is pursuing the
appeal .

There being no further testinony or questions, SENATOR WARD noved
HB 405 fromcommttee with individual reconmendations.

CHAI RVAN COWDERY announced that w thout objection, the notion
carried. Wth no further business to cone before the commttee,
he adjourned the neeting at 2:30 p. m

#

SENATE TRA COW TTEE -16- April 9, 2002



